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independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Members of the City Commission
Goodlettsville, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010 which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s management.
Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes
in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
major governmental funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 8, 2011, on our
consideration of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the resuits of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment
Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress on pages 3 through 8 and 33, are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’'s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplemental
information on pages 34 through 39, and other supplemental information are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplemental information on pages 34
through 39 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory section and other supplemental information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%M%M

February 8, 2011
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

Description of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’'s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Assets presents
information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of Activities presents
information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets
are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
compensated absences).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all activities of the City, including general government and administration, public
safety, public works, sanitation, parks and recreation, and tourism. The business-type activity of the City
includes the sewer operation. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9-10 of
this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into two categories-governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, uniike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. Because the
focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’'s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains four governmental funds; information is presented separately in the Governmental
Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances for the General Fund and Solid Waste Fund, the two major funds. Data from the other
two funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11-14 of this report.
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Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an
enterprise fund to account for its sewer operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund
financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 18-32 of this report.

Other Information

in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on page 33 of this
report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are
presented following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual
statements and schedules can be found on pages 34-35 of this report.

The activities of the City of Goodlettsville are accounted for in five funds: Generai Fund, Drug Fund, Solid
Waste Fund, Tourism Fund and Sewer Fund. In addition, the General Fund is divided into four areas.
The Grant, Street Aid, and Tourism sections account for the receipt and expenditure of revenues that are
restricted to certain purposes, and the General section accounts for all other General Fund activities.
During 2010, the Tourism section was separated into a separate special revenue fund.

Condensed comparative data.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 7,380,837 § 6,750,077 $ 4557739 $ 4,300,180 $ 11,938,626 $ 11,050,257
Capital assets 13,139,656 13,777,683 22,910,309 22,240,844 36,049,965 36,018,527
Total assets 20,520,543 20,527,760 27,468,048 26,541,024 47,988,591 47,068,784
LIABILITIES
Other liablilties 3,366,584 3,476,826 138,615 128,720 3,505,199 3,605,546
Long-term liabiiities 2,124,467 2,010,004 5,130,576 4,452 586 7,255,043 6,462,590
Total liabilities 5,491,051 5,486,830 5,269,191 4,581,306 10,760,242 10,068,136
NET ASSETS
invested in capitai assets,
net of related debt 12,294,327 12,726,830 17,808,778 17,813,801 30,103,106 30,540,631
Restricted 856,954 829,456 - - 856,954 829,456
Unrestricted 1,878,211 1,484,644 4,390,079 4,145,918 6,268,289 5,630,562
Total net assets $ 15,029,492 §$ 15,040,930 $ 22,198,857 $ 21,959,719 $ 37,228,349 § 37,000,649
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Change in Net Assets

Govermnental Business-type
Functions/Programs: Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 1614814 § 1,651,046 $ 3931217 $ 3,309,267 $ 5546,031 § 4,960,313
Operating grants and contributions 535,204 451,559 - - 535,204 451,559
Capital grants and contributions 83,578 726,750 - - 83,578 726,750
General Revenues 9,379,480 9,399,192 47,749 167,313 9,427,229 9,566,504
Totai Revenues 11,613,076 12,228,547 3,978,966 3,476,580 15,592,042 15,705,126
Expenses
General govemment 2,885,572 3,084,557 - - 2,885,572 3,084,557
Public safety 5,339,890 5,113,792 - - 5,339,890 5,113,792
Public Works 1,142,901 1,216,964 - - 1,142,901 1,216,964
Sanitation 751,294 755,411 - - 751,294 755,411
Parks and recreation 1,251,512 1,589,483 - - 1,251,512 1,589,483
Tourism 270,514 173,820 - - 270,514 173,820
interest on iong-term debt 60,363 56,429 - - 60,363 56,429
Sewer - - 3,746,237 3,381,879 3,746,237 3,381,879
Total Expenses 11,702,044 11,990,457 3,746,237 3,381,879 15,448,281 15,372,336
increase (Decrease) in net assets
before transfers (88,968) 238,090 232,729 94,701 143,761 332,791
Transfers 77,529 77,829 (77,529) (77,829) - -
Increase (Decrease) in net assets (11,439) 315,919 155,200 16,872 143,761 332,791
Net assets - beginning 15,040,931 14,725,011 21,959,719 21,942,847 37,000,650 36,667,858
Prior Period Adjustment ~ - 83,938 - 83,938 -
Net assets - ending 15,029,492 15,040,930 22,198,857 21,959,719 37,228,349 37,000,649

Overall analysis.

The City's overall financial condition remained solid during Fiscal Year 2010. Although total
governmental revenues decreased 5% from Fiscal Year 2009, total governmental expenditures
decreased 7.5% from the prior year. This resulted in a slight decrease in net assets of $11,400. Total
governmental revenues reported for Fiscal Year 2010 decreased from $12,200,000 in Fiscal Year 2009 to
$11,600,000 in Fiscal Year 2010-a decrease of $600,000. Most of the decrease in revenues for Fiscal
Year 2010 was the result of a reduction in grant revenue. Fiscal Year 2009 revenues inciuded a one-time
Department of Homeland Security Grant of $712,500 for the purchase of a platform fire truck. The
economy also had an effect on the City’s revenues as local sales tax revenues and construction permits
further decreased from the prior year. Total governmental expenditures decreased from $11,990,000 in
Fiscal Year 2009 to $11,702,000 in Fiscal Year 2010- a decrease of $288,000. The Sewer Fund
continued to strengthen its financial position as it experienced an increase in net assets of $155,000.
Sewer fund revenues increased $500,000 from $3,480,000 in Fiscal Year 2009 to $3,980,000-14%.
Expenditures in the Sewer Fund increased approximately 11% from $3,380,000 to $3,750,000 in Fiscal
Year 2010.

The City continues to closely monitor local option sales tax collections. While total Local Option Sales
Tax coliections again saw a decrease from the prior year (Fiscal Year 2009-$3,676,000 compared to
Fiscal Year 2010-$3,528,500), there was an increase in the collections for the last two months of the
fiscal year compared to the same two months in the prior year. That trend has continued through the
midpoint of Fiscal Year 2011. The City continues to monitor collections on a monthly basis.

General Fund expenditures decreased in Fiscal Year 2010 approximately $280,000 from the prior year.
The City spent considerably less in capital improvements compared to Fiscal Year 2009, and operating
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accounts were very tightly managed in all departments. Overall, General Fund expenditures were under
budget by $1,500,000. Due to the current and ongoing economic conditions, the City is strictly monitoring
all expenditures.

The City spent approximately $730,000 in capital dollars in the General Fund this year. Capital additions
included five new police cruisers, a crime suppression vehicle, and the replacement of an unmarked
vehicle for the CID department. The City also replaced a 21-year-oid cooling tower in City Hall and
replaced the HVAC system at the Community Center. A new accounting and administrative software
package was acquired by the City and was financed with a capital lease. The Fire Department was able
to purchase swift water rescue equipment due to a Fireman’s Fund insurance Company grant and a
donation from a focal insurance provider. The City spent approximately $280,000 resurfacing city streets
in Fiscal Year 2010. The Sewer Fund had Construction in Progress expenses of $442,000 for sewer
rehabilitation and $1,200,000 for construction of a wastewater flow equalization basin at the Mansker
Creek Pump Station. These two projects are being funded by a loan with the State’s Revolving Loan
Fund program that includes $5 million of American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds in the
form of “principal forgiveness”. Those two projects will continue through the next fiscal year.

Fund analysis

General Fund. The General Fund is the largest component of the governmental activities. The local
option sales tax represents approximately 1/3 of the total revenues in the General Fund. Sales tax
collections in Davidson County decreased ($152,000) while Sumner County increased ($4,400)
compared to the prior year. Total local option sales tax collections decreased 4% from the prior fiscal
year. However, in the last two months of Fiscal Year 2010, there were increases in local option sales tax
collections compared to the same two months in the prior year. State shared revenues decreased <1%
from the prior year. This decrease was anticipated and budgeted due to the affects of the sluggish state
of the economy.

in spite of the sluggish economy, the City increased its General Fund Balance by $663,000 and exceeded
the mandated fiscal year-end General Fund balance set by the Board of Commissioners of 18% of its
operating expenditures. The General Fund balance at June 30, 2010 was $3,977,400 with $2,536,110
being an “unreserved” fund balance.

Drug Fund. Expenditures in the drug fund depend on the amount of drug fines received and proceeds
from seized property, both of which showed typical activity this year. Twenty-three thousand one hundred
twenty-seven dollars ($23,127) was collected in drug fines, and forty-five thousand nine hundred sixty
dollars ($46,980) was spent in drug enforcement activities during Fiscal Year 2010.

Solid Waste Fund. As stated earlier, the City implemented a sanitation service fee on July 1, 2008 of $15
per month per residential living unit. This fee generated $729,000 revenue in Fiscal Year 2010.
Expenditures in the Solid Waste Fund were $702,000, which was a slight reduction from the prior year.
Therefore, there was no General Fund subsidy to the Solid Waste Fund through operating transfers of
funds. The Solid Waste Fund also generates revenue through the collection of sanitation fees of $75 per
trash receptacle collected at the initial set-up of service; and through the recycling program managed by
the Public Works Department. Those revenues are classified as “Miscellaneous” and totaled $26,000 for
Fiscal Year 2010.

Tourism Fund. The tourism fund, created during 2010, had an increase in fund batance of $55,000.

Sewer Fund. Operating revenues and expenditures in the Sewer Fund both increased during fiscal year
2010. Operating revenues increased 20% or $650,000. Operating expenditures increased 13% or
$422,000 over the prior fiscal year. The increase in revenues was the result of a new fee structure that
was implemented effective July 1, 2009. The City’s negotiations with the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County (Metro) on a new wastewater treatment contract were resolved in Fiscal
Year 2010 and resulted in a new contract for Sewer treatment. The new contract resulted in an expected
and budgeted increase in sewage treatment fees.
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Budget variances in the General Fund

The General Fund revenues were below budget by approximately 3% ($338,000). Most of this was due
to the overall decline in economic conditions over the past 18-24 months, with the largest variances in
sales tax collections and building and construction permits. However, the City recorded unbudgeted
insurance proceeds of $430,000 in Fiscal Year 2010. General Fund expenditures were 8% under budget
($963,000). This resulted in an overall addition to the General Fund Balance of $663,000, instead of the
budgeted reduction to the General Fund balance.

Capital asset and long-term debt activity

Capital asset activity included the addition of five new police cruisers, a crime suppression vehicle, and
the replacement of an unmarked vehicle for the CID department. The City financed the vehicle
purchases with a capital lease. A new accounting and administrative software package was purchased
by the City in Fiscal Year 2010, and was also financed through a capital lease. The City also replaced a
21-year-old cooling tower in City Hall and replaced the HVAC system at the Community Center. The Fire
Department was able to purchase swift water rescue equipment due to a Fireman’s Fund Insurance
Company grant and a donation from a local insurance provider. The City spent approximately $280,000
resurfacing city streets in Fiscal Year 2010 funded through the Street Aid Fund.

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets

Balance Balance
7/1/2009 Additions Disposals 6/30/2010
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land $ 3,190,618 % -3 - $ 3,190,618
Construction in Progress 15700 $ - § - 15,700
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated $ 3,206,318 $ -3 - $ 3,206,318
Capital Assets being Depreciated
Buildings $ 7,743,836 3 - $ 319615 § 7,424,221
Improvements 4,787,721 59,237 - 4,846,958
Machinery & Equipment 7,653,191 347,508 207,919 7,792,780
Infastructure 4,397 171 300,694 - 4,697,865
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated $ 24581919 § 707,439 § 527,534 § 24,761,824
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land $ 2,139,071 § -3 - $ 2,139,071
Construction in Progress 247,816 1,396,238 - 1,644 054
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated $ 2,386,887 § 1,396,238 $ - $ 3783125
Capital Assets being Depreciated
Buildings $ 4332627 $ - 9 - $ 4332627
Improvements 16,188 - - 16,188
Machinery & Equipment 1,288,256 - - 1,288,256
Infastructure 22,594 953 - - 22,594 953
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated $ 28,232,023 $ - 8 - $ 28,232,024
Governmental Activities
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings $ 3400550 $ 121523 $§ 196,939 § 3,325,133
Improvements 2,649,882 150,094 - 2,799,976
Machinery & Equipment 5,860,472 713,453 239,141 6,334,784
Infastructure 2,099,650 268,943 - 2,368,593
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 14010554 $ 1254012 $ 436,081 $ 14,828,486
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Business-type Activities
Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings $ 774900 $ 230,166 $ - $ 1,005,066
Improvements 4,359 691 - 5,050
Machinery & Equipment 799,973 81,817 - 881,790
Infastructure 6,798,835 414,100 - 7,212,935
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 8,378,067 $ 726774 § - $ 9,104,841
Total Governmental Activities, Net $ 13,777,683 $ (546,573) § 91,454 $ 13,139,656
Total Business-type Activities, Net $ 22,240,843 § 669,464 § - $ 22,910,309

Schedule of Changes to Long-Term Liabilities — Governmental Activities

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2009 Additions Reductions June 30, 2010 1 Year
Compensated Absences $ 427807 $ 439,026 $ 389,567 § 477,266 $ -
Net OPEB Obligation 531,344 279,316 - 810,659 $ -
Capital Leases 178,710 263,030 194,794 246,945 115,727
Notes Payable 872,144 - 282,547 589,597 302,867
Totals $ 2,010,006 $ 981,372 $ 866,909 3 2124468 $ 418,594

Schedule of Changes to Long-Term Debt — Business-type Activities

Balance Balance Due Within
71112009 Additions Reductions 6/30/2010 1 Year
Compensated Absences $ 25544 § 24419 $ 24400 25,563 % -
Notes Payable 4,087,042 1,086,761 298,789 4,875,014 367,272
Revenue Bonds 340,000 - 110,000 230,000 110,000
Totals $ 4452586 $ 1,111,180 $ 433,189 $ 5130,577 § 477,272

Other Matters

Fiscal Year 2010 can only be described as extraordinary relative to daily operations of city government.
The thorough testing and implementation of the City’'s new highly integrated financial and management
software was completed during the year. The benefits derived from the new system have been only
partially recognized due to the timing of the final implementation during the year. Its full beneficial effect
is certainly anticipated in FY 2011.

Late in FY 2009 and throughout FY 2010, the City’s finance director successfully completed the majority
of requirements of the State’s mandated Certified Municipal Finance Officer (CMFQ) certification
program. Her final completion and membership in the program’s first graduating class is anticipated in FY
2011,

May 1° and 2™ of the year found the City experiencing a natural disaster of historic proportions. In a
thirty six-hour period over those days, areas of the City were inundated with flood waters caused by
rainfall measuring from ten to seventeen inches in the region. The disaster had two components — flash
flooding from the actual rainfall and inundation flooding caused by backup overflow of streams and creeks
throughout the City and the nearby Cumberland River. The City was included in the area declared in a
presidential declaration of disaster. For several days, all departments of city government operated in an
emergency rescue mode. At the end of the fiscal year, the City was well into its recovery and
rehabilitation phase, which is expected to stretch far into FY 2011 and possibly FY 2012.

During the last few months of the year, the City experienced higher than same-period-last-year retail
sales tax collections...a very important component of the City’s revenue stream. This observed trend
reversal from the previous 18-20 months was certainly welcomed and hopes are that it will continue
throughout FY 2011. It appears that this positive movement was also experienced by neighboring
municipal and county governments, as well as the State.
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Fiscal Year 2010 found the City continuing to place heavy emphasis on increasing the already aggressive
economic development function of the City’s government. Agreeing that increasing the City's tax base
better serves the long-term welfare of the City, Board of Commissioners members and City management
staff strategically planned how best to improve the economic well-being of Goodlettsville. While the
Economic Development Director continues establishing important development relationships, all other
departments of city government continue working to improve the general aesthetic quality of the City
through various cleanup activities, codes enforcement and planning for improved lighting, signage and
roadway access throughout the commercial areas of Goodlettsville.

Understanding the importance of regional relationships with other government entities, the City continued
fostering strong working relationships with the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson
County and its neighboring Sumner County municipal and county governments.

The FY 2010 General Fund budget includes a fund balance goal of $1,654,000 (15% of the operating
budget) at fiscal year-end. This variance from the Board of Commissioners’ mandated 18% balance was
recognized and understood when the budget was adopted. It also reflects a 2% decrease in revenues as
a result of the continuing weakening economic conditions. In response, the City’s General fund budgeted
expenditures for FY 2010 are 1% less than FY 2009, which were significantly less than FY 2008. City
staff continues closely monitoring all expenditures. The City Manager and Finance Director provide
monthly updates of current budget comparisons and projected financials to the Board of Commissioners.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Internal Balances, Net
Inventories
Unamortized Bond Costs, Net
Deposits

Capital Assets:
Land, Land Improvements
& Construction in Progress
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Net OPEB Obligation
Current Portion
Long-term Portion
Total Liabilities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Street Aid
Tourism
Drug Fund
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 2,554,762 $ 4,472,987 $ 7,027,749
4,536,975 334,914 4,871,889
253,745 (253,745) -
35,405 - 35,405
- 3,483 3,483
- 100 100
3,206,318 3,783,125 6,989,443
9,933,338 19,127,183 29,060,522
13,139,656 22,910,309 36,049,965
20,520,543 $ 27,468,048 $ 47,988,591
$ 309,188 $ 138,615 $ 447,802
3,057,397 - 3,057,397
477,266 25,563 502,829
810,659 - 810,659
418,594 477 272 895,866
417 948 4,627,742 5,045,689
5,491,051 5,269,191 10,760,242
12,294,327 17,808,778 30,103,105
29,752 - 29,752
832,935 - 832,935
(5,733) - (5,733)
1,878,211 4,390,079 6,268,290
15,029,492 22,198,857 37,228,349
$ 20,520,543 $ 27,468,048 $ 47,988,591

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Solid Non-major Total
General Waste Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash on Hand $ 1,200 - $ - $ 1,200
Cash in Bank 2,156,734 274,072 122,756 2,553,562
Receivables, Net 3,757,020 190,271 - 3,947,291
Intergovernmental Receivables 589,684 - - 589,684
Due From Other Funds 749,890 64,487 - 814,376
Inventory 35,406 - - 35,406
Total Assets $ 7,289,933 528,830 $ 122,756 $ 7,941,519
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 89,411 4318 % 976 % 94,705
Due To Other Funds 49,192 447,357 64,082 560,632
Other Current Liabilities 110,140 22,703 8,024 140,867
Deferred Compensation 6,393 143 - 6,536
Deferred Revenue 3,057,397 - - 3,057,397
Total Liabilities 3,312,533 474,522 73,082 3,860,137
Fund Balances:
Reserved For:
State Street Aid 29,752 - - 29,752
Tourism 777,528 - 55,407 832,935
Solid Waste Fund - 54,309 - 54,309
Drug Fund - - (5,733) (5,733)
Inventory 35,405 - - 35,405
Conference Drive 598,604 - - 598,604
Unreserved:
Designated for OPEB Obligation 500,399 - - 500,399
Undesignated 2,035,711 - - 2,035,711
Total Fund Balances 3,977,400 54,309 49 674 4,081,382
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 7,289,932 528,830 $ 122,756 $ 7,941,519
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds to Statement
of Net Assets are different because:
Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 4,081,382
Assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. -
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 13,139,656
Some liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (2,191,547)
Net Assets of the Governmental Activities $ 15,029,492

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues
Local Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines
Drug and Gambling Revenue
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Hotel/ Motel Taxes
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Sanitation
Drug Fund
Parks and Recreation
Tornado Relief
Tourism
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Capital Leases
Insurance Recoveries
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - July 1, 2009

Fund Balances - June 30, 2010

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Solid Non-major Total
General Waste Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 7642524 $ - $ - $ 7,642,524
158,204 - - 158,204
303,867 - - 303,867

- - 23,127 23,127
1,999,777 B - 1,999,777
281,639 729,124 26,643 1,037,406

- - 272,081 272,081

39,332 26,443 96 65,870
10,425,341 755,567 321,946 11,502,855
2,324,676 - - 2,324,676
4,862,765 - - 4,862,765
960,243 - - 960,243

- 702,062 - 702,062

- - 45,960 45 960
1,218,791 - - 1,218,791
57,937 - - 57,937

- - 243,412 243 412
477,341 - - 477,341
60,784 - - 60,784
734,701 - - 734,701
10,697,238 702,062 289,372 11,688,672
(271,897) 53,505 32,574 (185,818)
77,529 - - 77,529
271,818 - - 271,818
585,889 - - 585,889
935,236 - - 935,236
663,339 53,505 32,574 749,418
3,314,061 804 17,100 3,331,964
$ 3,977,400 $ 54,309 $ 49,674 $ 4,081,382

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from
the amounts reported for governmental funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 749,418

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays

exceeded depreciation in the current period. (638,027)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving
capital assets is to increase net assets. -

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. -

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the

principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial

resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however

has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the

effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and

amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net

effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and

related items. 205,944

Some expense reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (328,774)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (11,439)

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Fund Solid Waste Fund
Budgeted Amounts Positive Budgeted Amounts Positive
(Negative) (Negative)
Variance with Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Original Final Actual Final
Revenues
Local Taxes:
Property and Personalty Taxes $2,977,000 $2,977,000 $3,151,124 $ 174,124 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Sales Taxes 3,695,000 3,695,000 3,528,506 (166,494) - - - -
Alcohotic Beverage Taxes 630,000 630,000 580,109 (49,891) - - - -
Business Taxes 360,000 360,000 312,670 (47,330) - - - -
Hospitality Taxes 65,000 65,000 70,115 5115 - - - -
Licenses and Permits 297,000 297,000 158,204 (138,796) - - - -
Fines 300,000 300,000 303,867 3,867 - - - -
Intergovernmental Revenues: - - -
Sales Taxes 978,000 978,000 940,049 (37,951) - - - -
Gasoline and Motor Fuel Taxes 393,000 393,000 392,331 (669) - - - -
income Taxes 163,000 163,000 213,230 50,230 - - - -
Alcohiolic Beverage Taxes 75,000 75,000 64,596 (10,404) - - - -
TVA - Inlieu of Tax 137,000 137,000 162,379 25,378 - - - -
Transportation Taxes 32,000 32,000 31,696 (304) - - - -
Grarnits 205,400 205,400 195,497 (3,803) - - - -
Charges for Services 399,000 399,000 281,639 (117,362) 730,000 730,000 729,124 (876)
Miscellaneous Revenues 57,000 57,000 39,332 (17,668) 20,000 20,000 26,443 6,443
Total Revenues 10,763,400 10,763,400 10,425,341 (338,059) 750,000 750,000 755,567 5,567
Expenditures
Current:
Generat Government 2,885,207 2,885,207 2,324,676 560,531 - - ~ -
Pubiic Safety 5,117,117 5,117,117 4,862,765 254,352 - - - -
Public Works (also see below) 765,265 765,265 774,046 (8,781} - - - -
Street Lights 102,000 102,000 80,323 11,677
Street Maintenarice 25,000 25,000 14,499 10,501
Street Paving ¥ 0 81,376 (81,376)
Sanitation - - - - 802,481 802,481 702,062 100,419
Parks and Recreation 1,655,625 1,555,525 1,218,791 336,734 - - - -
Tornado Retlief - - 57,837 (57.937) - - - -
Tourism - - - - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal 438,400 438,400 477,341 (38,941) - - - -
Interest - - 60,784 (60,784) - - - -
Capital Cutlay 1,358,000 1,356,000 734,701 621,259 - - - -
Total Expenditures 12,244,514 12,244,514 10,697,238 1,647,276 802,481 802,481 702,062 100,419
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (1,481,114)  (1,481,114) (271,897) 1,208,217 {52,481} (52,481) 53,505 105,986
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 84,000 84,000 77,529 (6,471) - - - -
Capital Leases 584,000 584,000 271,818 (312,182) - - - -
Insurance Recoveries - - 585,888 585,889 - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 668,000 668,000 935,236 267,236 - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (813,114) (813,114) 563,339 1,476,453 (52,481)  (52,481) 53,505 105,986
Fund Balance - July 1, 2009 3,314,061 3,314,061 3,314,061 - 304 304 804 -
Fund Balances - June 30, 2010 $2,500,947 $2,500,947 $3,977,400 $ 1,476,453 $(51,677)  $(51,677) $54,309 $ 105,986

See notes {o the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities

Sewer Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 4472987
Accounts Receivable, Less Allowance of $4,235 334,914
Due from Other Funds 49,153

Total Current Assets $ 4,857,054

Capital Assets
Capital Assets 32,015,150
Accumulated Depreciation (9,104,841)

Total Capital Assets 22,910,309
Utility Deposit 100
Unamortized Bond Cost, Net 3,483

Total Assets $ 27,770,945
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 79,220
Accrued Interest Payable 10,500
Accrued Wages, Payroll Taxes and Deductions Payable 19,272
Deferred Compensation 933
Deposits Payable 28,689
Due to Other Funds 302,898
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities 477,272

Total Current Liabilities $ 018,784

Long-Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 25,563
Notes Payable 4,507,742
Revenue Bonds Payable 120,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities 4,653,304

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 17,808,778
Unrestricted 4,390,079
Total Net Assets 22,198,857
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 27,770,945

See notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services:
Sewer Fees - Davidson County
Sewer Fees - Sumner County
State User Fees
Sewer Flow Charges
Permits/Connection Fees

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Cost of Services
Administration
Depreciation and Amortization
Insurance
Repairs and Maintenance

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Revenue
Miscellaneous Expense
Interest Expense
Rental Income
Tap Fees

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income before Transfers
Transfers
Increase in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1, 2009

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets - June 30, 2010

See notes to the financial statements.

Business-type
Activities -
Sewer Fund

$ 3,149,883
673,622
(15,274)

55,886
27,275

3,891,392

1,854,403
828,468
728,752
151,387

24,561

3,587,571

303,821

22,915
(3,486)
(158,666)
28,320
39,825

(71,092)

232,729

(77,529)

155,200

21,959,719

83,938

§ 22,198,857




CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds
Principal Paid on Bonds/Notes
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
Cash Received from Tap Fees
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Miscellaneous Revenue
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Increase in Transfer to Other Funds
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash Received from Billboard Rentals
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Restricted Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year
Cash at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase in Accounts Receivable
Increase in Accounts Payable
Decrease in Payroll Liabilities
Increase in Deferred Compensation
Decrease in Due from/to Other Funds, Net
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities -
Sewer Fund

$ 3,801,392
(2,544,708)
(614,385)

732,299

1,086,761
(408,790)
(160,341)

39,825
(1,312,300)
(3,486)

(758,332)

(77,529)

(77.529)

28,320
22,915

51,235

(52,326)

4,525,313

$ 4472987

$ 303,821

728,752

(77,546)
11,658
(82)
12
(234,316)

$ 732,299




Note 1.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Goodlettsville’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow
the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that
date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds. The City has chosen to do so. The
more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed
below.

Reporting Entity

The City of Goodlettsville is a municipality governed by an elected five-member commission.
These financial statements present the financial position and activities of the City government
only. The City has no component units, thus no blended or discretely presented component
units are included in these financial statements.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the activities of the City. The effect of
interfund activity, within the governmental and business-type activities columns, has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other
items not property included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The government uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the
results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to
aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions
or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

The City has its funds classified into two categories: governmental and proprietary. Each
category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds) and
the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects funds). The general
fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some
other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector,
where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial
administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside
parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily within the government
(internal service funds).
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Note 1.
B.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2010

Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

The following is a list of the City's funds:

I. Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all
financial transactions and resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from property and other local taxes,
state and federal distributions, licenses, permits, charges for service, and interest
income.
Special Revenue Funds - accounts for revenue derived from specific sources (other
than major capital projects) that are restricted by legal and regulatory provisions to
finance specific activities. The Special Revenue Funds are the Solid Waste Fund,
Tourism Fund and Drug Fund. The Solid Waste Fund is a major fund. The Tourism
and Drug Funds are not considered major funds for reporting purposes.

Il. Proprietary Fund Types
Enterprise Fund - The Sewer Fund is used to account for the revenues generated
from the charges for sanitary sewer services provided to the residential and
commercial users of the City.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers all revenues to be available in the
period for which levied if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special
assessments, licenses, interest revenue and charges for services. Fines, permits and
parking meter revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred. Principal and interest on long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or
when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made
early in the following year. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual
services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2010

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

D.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City uses the modified cash basis for budgetary accounting and has established the
following procedures with regard to the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. Prior to May 15 the proposed operating budgets are presented to the City commission for
review and approval.

2. The budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance which also sets the
tax rate.

3. Revisions to the budget during the fiscal year require the City commission’s approval.

4. Budgets for the various funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition, including restricted cash. State statutes authorize the City to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certificates of deposit, certain federal nonconvertible debt
securities, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer's investment Pool. Cash
equivilents are stated at cost.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
purchased rather than when consumed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which includes property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary
funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical is not available. Donated assets are valued at their fair market value on the date
donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses.

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $5,000 or more
and over three years of useful life. Infrastructure assets capitalized have an original cost of
$100,000 or more. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property
using the straight-line method. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are expensed. Estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life (Years)
Buildings 40
Improvements 7-40
Machinery & Equipment 5-10
Infrastructure 15-20

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. An employee’s total accumulated vacation time may not exceed the following
amounts: 120 hours after five years of employment; 160 hours after ten years of employment;
and 400 hours after twenty years of employment. Employees may accumulate unused sick
time up to 960 hours, of which 50% is paid upon retirement.
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Note 1.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2010

Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Property Tax

Taxes are levied on October 1 and are due and payable on or before February 28 of the
following year. Uncollected property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
March 1. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied. An allowance is established for
delinquent taxes to the extent that their collectability is doubtful.

Under GASB Statement 33, Accounting for Non-Exchange Transactions, property taxes are
imposed nonexchange revenue. Assets (accounts receivable) from imposed nonexchange
transactions are recorded when the City has an enforceable legal claim to the asset. The
enforceable legal claim date for property taxes is the assessment date. The assessment date
has been designated in the enabling legislation as of January 1. Therefore, the City has
recorded the succeeding year's receivable and deferred revenue for taxes assessed as of
year-end that will not be received until after year-end.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund
receivables/payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “due to/from other funds”
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmental-wide
financial statements as “internal balances”.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities consist of bonds, notes, and other indebtedness including liabilities
associated with compensated absences and postemployment benefits. In the government-
wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported
as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In the fund financial
statements, long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the
following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund.
Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted
for in those funds.

Fund Balance Reserves

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriate for expenditure or legally
segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for
future use of financial resources.
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Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments.

The government-wide financial statements split the City programs between governmental and
business-type activities. The beginning net asset amount for the business-type activities
equals fund equity of the enterprise funds from last year. The beginning net asset amount for
governmental activities reflects fund balance for governmental funds adjusted for the
conversion to the accrual basis of accounting from last year.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of
the proprietary funds. For the City, these revenues are charges for services for sewer
services. Operating expenses are necessary costs that have been incurred in order to provide
the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside
contributions of capital assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection
to the system, or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital
acquisition and construction. Contributions of capital assets are recorded as revenue in the
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting
The City uses a modified cash basis for budgeting in governmental funds and full accrual
basis for budgeting in proprietary funds.

Cash and Investments
The City has no formal deposit and investment policies other than those prescribed by State
of Tennessee statute and explained below.

Deposits in financial institutions are required by State statute to be secured and collateralized
by the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and must have a total
minimum market value of 105% of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions, less the
amount protected by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC). Collateral
requirements are not applicable for financial institutions that participate in the State of
Tennessee’s collateral pool.

As of June 30, 2010, all of the City's deposits and investments were held by financial
institutions which participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the
State of Tennessee or in the State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool
(“LGIP™). Participating banks in the bank collateral pool determine the aggregate balance of
their public fund accounts. The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits
must be at least 105% of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collected
securities required to be pledged by the participant banks to protect their public fund accounts
are pledged to the State Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool.
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Cash and Investments - Continued

The securites pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than
against each individual account. The members of the pool may be required by agreement to
pay an assessment to cover any deficiency. Under the additional assessment agreement,
public fund accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of
custodial credit risk disclosure.

Proprietary fund restricted cash and investments are, from time to time, on deposit with
SunTrust Bank, a participant in the bank collateral pool and the revenue bond paying agent.
These assets are restricted to use as revenue bond interest payments and bond retirement in
accordance with provisions of the various bond resolutions. As of June 30, 2010, there were
no restricted investments.

Pension Plan

Plan Description

Employees of the City of Goodlettsville are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan
(PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as
well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the
member’s high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to
retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A
reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits
are available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot
engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the resuilt
of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in performance of duty. Members
joining the system on or after July 1, 1979 become vested after five years of service and
members joining prior to July 1, 1979 were vested after four years of service. Benefit
provisions are established in state statue found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee
Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly.
Political subdivisions such as the City of Goodlettsville participate in the TCRS as individual
entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their
plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by
the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to
Tennessee Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew
Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
http://www.tn.qov/treasury/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy
The City of Goodlettsville has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees by
assuming employee contributions up to 5.0 percent of annual covered payroll.

The City of Goodlettsville is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 was 15.15% of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirement of plan members is set by state statute. The contribution
requirement for the City of Goodlettsville is established and may be amended by the TCRS
Board of Trustees.
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Pension Plan — Continued

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2010, the City of Goodlettsville’s annual pension cost of
$864,661 to TCRS was equal to the City of Goodlettsville’s required and actual contributions.
The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using
the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a
year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) annual
rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation
on salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and
(d) projected post retirement increases of 3.0 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market
value of total investments over a five-year period. The City of Goodlettsville’s unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at July 1, 2007 was 8 years. An actuarial valuation was
performed as of July 1, 2009, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2010.

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed _Obligation
June 30, 2010 $ 864,661 100.00% $ -
June 30, 2009 $ 846,263 100.00% $ -
June 30, 2008 $ 864,859 100.00% § -

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 79.45% percent
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $18.19 million, and the actuarial value
of assets was $14.46 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$3.74 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan)
was $5.46 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 68.54% percent.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the AALs for benefits.

The annual required contribution (ARC) was calculated using the aggregate actuarial cost

method. Since the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize

unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about funded status and funding progress has been

prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method for that purpose, and this information is

intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued a % of
Value of Liability Unfunded Annual Covered
Actuarial Plan (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (alb) (c) {(b-a)/(c)
July 1, 2009 14,455 18,194 3,739 79.45% 5,455 68.54%
July 1, 2007 12,982 16,132 3,150 80.47% 5,312 59.30%
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The City has a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan is administered by ING Life Insurance and Annuity Company.
The plan is available to full time employees after they have been with the City for six months.
Employees may defer up to 25% of their gross pay to a maximum amount allowable under
current IRS regulations per year. Deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or financial hardship. The City made matching contributions
totaling $0 to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Post-retirement Health Care Benefits

Program Description

The City provides post-retirement health care benefits (medical and life insurance) to all
employees who retire from the City on or after attaining age 55 with at least 5 years of service,
or at any age with at least 25 years of service through a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan. Eligibility for continued medical benefits under the City’s plan requires the
retired employee be eligible for benefits from the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(See Note 4). Benefits for retirees under age 65 are deemed to be similar to those benefits
provided for actives. The healthcare plan is assumed to be the primary plan of benefits prior
to age 65. It is assumed to pay benefits secondary to Medicare after attaining age 65.
Participants do not receive prescription drug benefits from the City upon attaining Medicare
eligibility except as may be provided under the employer group insurance plan.

Funding Policy

The City provides the benefits by paying a portion of the retirees’ insurance premiums for
medical and life insurance coverage under fully insured plans. Certain current retirees are
grandfathered under the provision of a fixed, non-escalating contribution rate. Other retirees
and spouses must pay a percentage of the total premium cost. The percentage of the
premium paid by the retirees and spouses depends on the years of service at retirement. It is
assumed that all escalating premium contributions will increase in the future with medical
trend. The City contribution to the program consists of pay-as-you-go premiums in excess of
the retiree contributions. Plan members contributed $19,000 for fiscal 2010, approximately
16% of total premiums. The City contributions to the program for the fiscal year 2009 were
$97,000.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) for the program is
calculated based on the annual required contribution (“ARC")of the employer, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in
the City’s net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 674,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 23,910
Adjustment to annual required contribution (322,000)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 375,910
Less Contributions made (96,595)
Change in OPEB Obligation 279,316
Net OPEB obligation/(asset) - beginning of year 531,344
Net OPEB obligation/(asset) - end of year $ 810,659
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Post-retirement Health Care Benefits- continued
The City’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for 2010 were as follows:

Annual % of Annual
OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Costs Contributed Obligation
2010 375,910 26% $ 810,659
2009 674,000 21% $ 531,344

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $5,474,000, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $5,353,537, and the ratio of the unfunded
actuarial liability to the covered payroll was 102%.

Actuarial values of the program involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions of the probability of occurrences of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the program and the annual required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits. During 2009, the City designated $500,000 unreserved general fund balance for
OPEB obligation. Since the city has not established an irrevocable trust, there are no
separate plan assets reported under GASB 45.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the program (as
understood by the employer and eligible participants) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and participants at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the actuarial valuation performed as of April 1, 2007, the individual unit credit actuarial cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions include a 4.5% investment rate of return
(compounded annually net after investment expenses) and an annual healthcare cost trend
rate of 10% graded to 5% uniformly over 5 years. Both rates include a 3% inflation
assumption. The City’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar
of active member payroll over a closed period. The remaining amortization period at April 1,
2007 was 30 years.

Property Taxes Receivable

Gross property taxes receivable of $3,367,681 (allowance for doubtful accounts is $0) is
summarized, by year, on the Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable on page 40
of this report.
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Note 8. Capital Assets

June 30, 2010

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2010:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Capital Assets being Depreciated
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infastructure
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Capital Assets being Depreciated
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infastructure
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

Governmental Activities
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
infastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Business-type Activities
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Infastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Governmental Activities, Net
Total Business-type Activities, Net

Balance Balance
7/1/12009 Additions Disposalis 6/30/2010
$ 3,190,618 $ -9 - $ 3,190,618

15,700 $ - 9 - 15,700

$ 3206318 $ - $ - $ 3,206,318
$ 7,743,836 $ - 8§ 319615 $ 7,424,221
4,787,721 59,237 - 4,846,958
7,653,191 347,508 207,919 7,792,780
4,397,171 300,694 - 4,697,865

$ 24581919 § 707,439 $ 527,534 $ 24,761,824
$ 2,139,071 $ -9 - $ 2,139,071
247 816 1,396,238 - 1,644,054

$ 2,386,887 $ 1,396,238 % - $ 3,783,125
$ 4332627 §$ - $ - $ 4332627
16,188 - - 16,188
1,288,256 - - 1,288,256
22,594,953 - - 22,594,953
$ 28,232,023 $ - % - $ 28,232,024
$ 3400550 $ 121,523 $ 196,939 $ 3,325,133
2,649,882 150,094 - 2,799,976
5,860,472 713,453 239,141 6,334,784
2,099,650 268,943 - 2,368,593

$ 14,010,554 $ 1,254,012 § 436,081 $ 14,828,486
$ 774900 $ 230,166 $ - $ 1,005,066
4,359 691 - 5,050
799,973 81,817 - 881,790
6,798,835 414,100 - 7,212,935

$ 8378067 $§ 726774 § - $ 9,104,841
$ 13,777,683 $ (546,573) $ 91,454 $ 13,139,656
$ 22,240,843 $ 669,464 $ - $ 22,910,309
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Note 8. Capital Assets - Continued

Note 9.

Depreciation Expense by Function

General Government 589,451
Public Safety 477,125
State Street Aid 78,760
Sanitation 48,854
Parks & Recreation 32,721
Sewer 726,774

$ 1,980,787

The City lost the Pleasant Green Clubhouse to fire during 2010. Insurance proceeds of
$475,668 are included in other financing sources of the general fund. For governmental
activities in the government-wide statements the proceeds are calculated in the Gain on
disposal of assets.

Long-Term Debt

Below is a condensed schedule of maturities for long-term debt and obligations at June 30,
2010. A detailed Schedule of Long-term Debt, Principal, and Interest Requirements is
included on page 39 of this report.

Year Ended Principal Interest
June 30, Due Due
2011 $ 895,866 $ 220,425
2012 1,811,601 181,435
2013 445,684 148,253
2014 470,010 122,092
2015 452,337 93,284
2016-2020 1,866,059 162,747
2021-2025 - -
Total Long-term Debt $ 5941556 $ 928,236

Long-term debt and obligations payable at June 30, 2010 are comprised of the following:

Business-type Activities
Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds Issued to Finance
Construction, Bearing Interest at rates ranging from 1.35 to
3.75% Per Annum, Payable in Semi-Annual
Installments with the Final Payment Due April, 2012 $ 230,000

State Revolving Loan #96-091, Bearing Interest Payments at
4.472% Per Annum, Payable in Monthly Installments of
$41,123 with the Final Payment Due December 2018 3,538,253

State Revolving Loan #09-224, Bearing Interest Payments at
3.60% Per Annum, Interest only until construction is 90% complete
Payable in Monthly Installments with the Final Payment Due July 2t 1,086,761

General Obligation Capital Outlay Bonds Issued to Finance
Certain Public Works Projects, Bearing Interest at 4.134%
Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments with the Final

Payment Due September 5, 2019 250,000
Total Sewer Fund Debt Payable 5,105,014
Less: Current Portion (477,272)
Long-Term Debt Payable - Sewer Fund $ 4,627,742
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Business-type Activities - Continued
The following is a summary of changes to long-term debt in the Business-type activities during
the year ended June 30, 2010:

Balance Balance Due Within
7/1/2009 Additions Reductions 6/30/2010 1 Year
Compensated Absences $ 25,544 § 24419 $ 24,400 25563 $ -
Notes Payable 4,087,042 1,086,761 298,789 4,875,014 367,272
Revenue Bonds 340,000 - 110,000 230,000 110,000
Totals $ 4452586 §$ 1,111,180 $ 433,189 $ 5,130,577 $ 477,272

Governmental Activities
Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds Issued to Finance
Construction, Bearing Interest at Rates Ranging from 1.50 to
3.50% Per Annum, Payable in Semi-Annual
Installments with the Final Payment Due October 2010 $ 155,000

General Obligation Capital Outlay Bonds Issued to Finance
Certain Public Works Projects, Bearing Interest at 4.22%
Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments with the Final

Payment Due October 2011 267,930

Capital Lease Payable to First Tennessee Bank, National

Association for Equipment, Bearing Interest at 4.2% Per

Annum, Payable in Semi-Annual Installments of $68,606

Principal and Interest Payments are Based on Total Debt of

$525,508, As of June 30, 2008, only $296,161 had been Drawn

on the Lease. 55,921

Capital Lease Payable to Ford Motor Credit for Equipment

Bearing Interest at 6.4% Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments

of $31,6086, Principal and Interest Payments are Based on

Total Debt of $89,229. 57,623

Capital Lease Payable to Ford Motor Credit for Equipment

Bearing Interest at 6.9% Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments

of $8,050, Principal and Interest Payments are Based on

Total Debt of $22,626. 14,576

Capital Lease Payable to Ford Motor Credit for Equipment

Bearing Interest at 7.75% Per Annum, Payable in Anpual Installments

of $7,945, Principal and Interest Payments are Based on

Total Debt of $22,161. 14,216

Capital Lease Payable to DivLend Equipment Leasing for Software

Bearing Interest at 23% Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments

of $44,823, Principal and Interest Payments are Based on

Total Debt of $129,105. 104,610

General Obligation Capital Outlay Bonds Issued to Finance
Certain Public Works Projects, Bearing Interest at 4.134%
Per Annum, Payable in Annual Installments with the Final

Payment Due September 5, 2019 166,667
Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Obligations 836,542
Less: Current Portion (418,594)
Total Long-Term Governmental Activities Obligations $ 417,948
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Long Term Debt - Continued
Governmental Activities — Continued
The following is a summary of changes to long-term liabilities in the Governmental activities
during the year ended June 30, 2010. The compensated absences liability attributable to the
governmental activities will be liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

Balance Balance Due within
July 1,2009 Additions Reductions June 30, 2010 1 Year
Compensated Absences $ 427,807 $ 439026 $ 389,567 $ 477,266 $ -
Net OPEB Obligation 531,344 279,316 - 810,659 $ -
Capital Leases 178,710 263,030 194,794 246,945 115,727
Notes Payable 872,144 - 282,547 589,597 302,867
Totals $ 2010005 $ 981372 $§ 866,909 $ 2,124,468 $ 418,594

Construction in Progress and Loan

Included in the long-term debt for the business-type activities above is the 09-224 State
Revolving Loan (“SRL") of $12.5 million for ongoing construction projects. Refer to Note 11.
The $12.5 million loan is comprised of $6,250,000 of state revolving loan money and
$6,250,000 of American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (“ARRA”) funds. Funds are
disbursed by the SRL Fund after certified requests are submitted. As of June 30, 2010, only
$1,086,761 had been disbursed. Interest began after the first request was disbursed.
Additional requests were in various stages of certification at year-end. Once the loan funds
are fully disbursed, principal repayments will begin. The repayment schedule calls for
$5,000,000 of ARRA funds to be forgiven. The remaining $1,250,000 ARRA funds and
$6,250,000 will be repaid over 20 years.

Capital Leases
The City has the following ongoing lease agreements as of June 30, 2010:

Capitalized
Cost

Public Safety Vehicles $ 224,686
General Government Vehicles/Equipment 183,563
Parks and Recreation Vehicles 21,975
Parks and Recreation Equipment 15,851
Public Works Equipment 49,666
Sanitation Vehicles 311,521

Total Assets in Machinery & Equipment $ 807,262

These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore,
have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the
inception dates. The future minimum lease payments and the net present value of the
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2010, are as follows:

Future
Year Ended Minimum

June 30, Lease Pmts

2011 152,868

2012 92,424

2013 44,823

2013 44,733

2014 -

Total Minimum Lease Payments 334,848
Less: Amount Representing Interest (87,903)
Present Value of Future Minimum -
Lease Payments $ 246,945

30



Note 11.

Note 12.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2010

Construction Commitments
The City has the following construction projects in progress at June 30, 2010:

Total Total
Construction Estimated Expenses
Project Cost thru FYE 6/30/10
Governmental Activities:
Greenway n/a $ 15,700
Total Governmental Activities $ 15,700
Business-type Activities:
Flow Equalization Basin $ 9,000,000 $ 1,202,315
Sewer Rehab $ 4,500,000 $ 441,739
Total Business-type Activities $ 1,644,054

The flow equalization basis and sewer rehab-phase 5 projects in progress at June 30, 2010
are two projects totaling $13.5 million that are being funded by the State revolving loan 09-224
disclosed in Note 9. These projects are both funded partially by ARRA funds. (Refer to Note
9) As of June 30, 2010, significant additional construction work had been performed but had
not been approved by appropriate contractors, engineers, lawyers, consultants and or the
State revolving loan fund and therefore has not been accrued in the financial statements.
Interest of $3,782 paid on the State Revolving Loan 09-224 has been capitalized in
construction in progress as of June 30, 2010.

interfund Receivables/Payables/Transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Due From

Solid Waste Tourism Sewer
Due To General Fund Fund Drug Fund Fund Fund
General Fund 3 - $ 447357 % 19,448 $ 44,634 $ 238,450
Solid Waste Fund - - - - 64,487
Drug Fund - - - - -
Sewer Fund 49,192 - - - -
Total 3 49,192 $ 447,357 § 19,448 $ 44,634 $ 302,937

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded
in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. The balance is
scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year.

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Transfer To
Solid Waste
Transfer From General Fund Fund Drug Fund Sewer Fund Total
General Fund $ - - $ - % - % -
Solid Waste Fund - - - - -
Drug Fund - - - - -
Sewer Fund 77,529 - - - 77,529
Total $ 77,529 % - $ - % - $ 77,529

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as
debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations. The transfer from the sewer fund to the general fund was a result
of payments in lieu of tax that do not represent equivalent services provided (1).
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Note 13.

Note 14.

Note 15.

Note 16.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2010

Contracts
The City has the following contracts for the billing and collection of sewer and sanitation
charges for users:

¢ Madison Suburban Utility District (MSUD) handles the billing and collection of sewer
and sanitation charges for users in Davidson County. The City currently pays MSUD
$2.06 and $1.25 plus an adjustment based on Consumer Price Index (CPI) per bill
per month for sewer and sanitation services, respectively.

» White House Utility District handles the billing and collection of sewer charges for
users of the sewer system in Sumner County for a fee of $1.50 per customer per
month.

o Hendersonville Utility District provides sewage treatment and disposal for a set fee of
$.22 per 1,000 gallons used.

The Department of Water Services of Metropolitan Nashville also provides sewage treatment
and disposal for a contracted fee. The utility price is $1 /100 cubic feet of water flowing
through each point of connection with adjustments for minimum and maximum flow levels and
points of origin. The agreement also provides for indexed adjustment to the utility price
annually. This agreement expires September 2030.

The City is a member of the Metro Sewer Users Association. The purpose of the Association
is to improve communication and the distribution of information among members and to
provide a unified approach in dealing with Metro Water Services and its role as a regional
wastewater treatment service provider.

Concentrations

The City has a risk concentration in sales tax revenue from Rivergate retail area taxpayers
which is believed to represent more than 10% of the General Fund'’s total revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2010.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
City participates in the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool (TMLRMP), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance
program for municipalities. The City pays an annual premium to the TMLRMP for its
insurance coverage. The TMLRMP is self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured
event. Settled claims of the city have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

Prior Period Adjustment

$83,938 of construction costs incurred during the year ended June 30, 2009 was expensed.
During 2010, these costs were included in reimbursements for the current construction project
funded by a state revolving loan. These amounts should have been included in construction
in progress and were corrected during 2010. This resulted in an increase in beginning net
assets of the proprietary fund and business-type activities from $21,959,719 to $22,043,657.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Retirement Plan Funding Progress
{(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

June 30, 2010

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued a % of
Value of Liability Unfunded Annual Covered
Actuarial Plan (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (alb) (c) ({(b-a)/(c)
July 1, 2009 14,455 18,194 3,739 79.45% 5,455 68.54%
July 1, 2007 12,982 16,132 3,150 80.47% 5,312 59.30%

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the Schedule
of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The requirement to present the
Schedule of Funding Progress using the Entry Age actuarial cost method went into affect during the
year of the 2007 actuarial valuation, therefore only the two most recent valuations are presented.

Refer to Footnote 4 for additional information and a description of the plan.

CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Program
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

June 30, 2010

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued a % of
Value of Liability Unfunded Annual Covered
Actuarial Plan (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Payroli
Valuation Assets -Entry Age  (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)/(c)
April 1, 2007 - 6,017 6,017 0.00% 5,354 112.38%

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the Schedule
of Funding Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. The unit credit actuarial cost
method has been used by the program for funding purposes.

Refer to Footnote 6 for additional information and a description of the program.

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Governmental Funds

June 30,

2010

Special Revenue

Total
Non-major
Drug Tourism Governmentalt
Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash $ 13,715 $ 109,041 $ 122,756
Due From Other Funds - - -
Total Assets $ 13,715 $ 109,041 $ 122,756
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ - $ 976 3 976
Due to Other Funds 19,448 44,634 64,082
Accrued Wages - 8,024 8,024
Total Liabilities 19,448 53,634 73,082
Fund Balances
Reserved For:
Drug Fund (5,733) - (56,733)
Tourism Fund - 55,407 55,407
Total Fund Balances (6,733) 55,407 49 674
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 13,715 $ 109,041 $ 122,756

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Special Revenue

Total
Non-major
Drug Tourism Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Drug Revenue $ 23127 % - $ 23,127
Hotel/ Motel Taxes - 272,081 272,081
Charges for Services - 26,643 26,643
Miscellaneous Revenue - 96 96
Total Revenues 23,127 298,820 321,946
Expenditures
Current:
Drug Fund 45,960 - 45,960
Tourism Fund - 243,412 243,412
Total Expenditures 45,960 243,412 289,372
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (22,833) 55,407 32,574
Fund Balance - July 1, 2009 17,100 - 17,100
Fund Balance - June 30, 2010 $ (5733) § 55407 § 49,674

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Reserve, Receipts and Dishursements
for State Street Aid and Tourism
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

State Street Aid
Beginning Reserve for State Street Aid

Receipts
Gas Taxes
Total Receipts

Expenditures
Street Lights
Street Maintenance
Street Paving
Long-term Debt
Capital Iimprovements

Ending Reserve for State Street Aid

Tourism
Beginning Reserve for Tourism

Receipts
Cable TV Franchise Taxes
Hotel/Motel Tax
Tourism Receipts

Total Receipts

Expenditures
Tourism Salaries and Benefits
Tourism Utilities
Capital Improvements
Tourism Other

Ending Reserve for Tourism

$ 104,943
424,026
424,026
90,323
14,499
81,376
313,020
499,217
$ 29,752
$ 707,413
70,115

- now in tourism fund
- now in tourism fund

70,115

0 now in tourism fund
0 now in tourism fund
0 now in tourism fund
0 now in tourism fund

5 777,528

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE

and Uncollected Delinquent Taxes Filed
June 30, 2010

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable

Gross Gross
Property Property
Taxes Taxes
Year of Receivable New Receivable
Levy 7/1/2009 Lavy Collections  Adjustments Write-Offs 6/30/2010
2010 $ - $3,057,397 ~ § - $ - $ - $ 3,057,397
2009 2,091,914 - (2,946,791) 993,666 * - 138,789
2008 114,119 - (65,563) - - 48,556
2007 63,902 - (10,878) - - 53,023
2006 23,530 - (2,893) - - 20,638
2005 14,425 - 9,069 - - 23,494
2004 18,692 - (460) - - 18,232
2003 6,272 - (361) - - 5,011
2002 1,192 - (107) - - 1,085
2001 609 - (102) - - 507
2000 140 - (91) - - 49
1999 42 - (42) -
Totals $2,334,836 $ 3,057,397 $(3,018,177) § 993,666 $ (42) § 3,367.681

Note: Delinquent property taxes receivable for the tax years 2008 - 1989 have been turned
over for collection to the Sumner County and Metro trustees.

* represents adjustment of estimated 2009 tax levy recognized in prior year to actual 2009 tax levy recorded in the

current year

A estimate of 2010 tax levy

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Schedule of Property Tax Rates and Assessments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tax Rate Tax Rate Realty
Fiscal Levy Per $100 Per $100 Tax
Year Year Davidson Sumner Levy
2010 2009 .6338 .6338 $ 3,085,580
2009 2008 .66 .66 2,887,879
2008 2007 .66 .66 2,840,113
2007 2006 .64 .69 2,689,509
2006 2005 .70 .66 2,615,245
2005 2004 .70 .66 2,682,866
2004 2003 .70 .66 2,589,828
2003 2002 22 22 857,270
2002 2001 22 22 775,948
2001 2000 22 22 641,199

See independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Utility Rate Structure and Number of Customers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

The City of Goodlettsville's Sewer Fund had approximately 4,502 customers at June 30, 2010. [ts rate
structure was as follows:

Residential Small Commercial and Industrial
(Minimum Charges per Month up to 200 (Minimum Charges per Month up to 200
Cubic Feet Usage) Cubic Feet Usage)
Meter Size Rate ($) Meter Size Rate ($)
5/8" 6.05 5/8" 6.76
3/4" 17.17 3/4" 19.23
1" 20.68 1" 23.16
11/2" 30.40 11/2" 34.05
2" 40.94 2" 45.85
3" 54.02 3" 60.50
4" 88.03 4" 98.59
6" 138.23 6" 154.82
8" 216.17 8" 24211
10" 216.17 10" 24211
Usage over 200 Usage over 200
Cubic Feet 3.76 per 100 cu.ft. Cubic Feet 4.21 per 100 cu.ft.

Intermediate Commercial and Industrial
(Minimum Charges per Month up to 200

Large Commercial and Industrial
(Minimum Charges per Month up to 200

Cubic Feet Usage) Cubic Feet Usage)
Meter Size Rate ($) Meter Size Rate ($)
5/8" 22.14 5/8" 854.53
3/4" 31.40 3/4" 863.77
1" 34.40 1" 866.77
11/2" 42.72 11/2" 875.08
2" 52.18 2" 884.55
3" 65.31 3" 892.86
4" 103.38 4" 930.97
6" 159.61 8" 987.20
8" 248.46 8" 1,080.84
10" 248.46 10" 1,080.84
Usage over 200 Usage over 200
Cubic Feet 3.43 per 100 cu.ft. Cubic Feet 2.59 per 100 cu.ft.

The City also had approximately 4,502 Solid waste customers at June 30, 2010 that are charged
$15/month per residential living unit.

See independent auditors' report.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Members of the City Commission
Goodlettsville, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee's
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 8, 2011. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City of
Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee in a
separate letter dated February 8, 2011.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission, management, the State
of Tennessee, Division of Municipal Audit and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

TR TRk ¢ Aaseriateo

February 8, 2011
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Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program
And on Internal Control Over Compliance Performed in Accordance with
OMB Circular A-133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Members of the City Commission
Goodlettsville, Tennessee

Compliance

We have audited the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2010. The City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
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possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to indentify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission, management, the State
of Tennessee, Division of Municipal Audit and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%/ /r;,«éa_'il Wtﬂ’c

February 8, 2011
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CITY OF GOODLETTSVILLE, TENNESSEE
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Department of Homeland Security CFDA 97.044
Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Internal Control for major

program
09-1. Segregation of Duties — Cash Receipts (modified and repeated from 08-1.)

Condition: A material weakness stating that duties related to cash receipts are not
adequately segregated.

Recommendation: Cash receipts process should be reviewed by management. The
process and individuals involved in the process should be segregated to ensure there is
proper segregation of duties. Both cash drawers should be closed daily. The cash reports
should be redesigned to ensure they provide clear documentation of each deposit.

Current Status:  Recommendations were implemented during 2010. This finding has
been corrected.

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Compliance and Other
Matters for major program
09-2. Cash Deposits (repeated from 08-2)
Condition: Within our audit sample of 50 cash transactions, we noted nine occurrences
that funds were received at various city offices and were not deposited within the three-
day requirement. This occurred five times with codes permits, and four times for business
taxes. Of the nine violations noted, five were deposited within four days.

Recommendation: We recommend the city communicate to all departments regarding
this matter. All departments receiving money from the public should remit daily deposits
to the central cashier at City Hall to ensure those deposits meet the three-day rule.

Current Status:  Recommendations were implemented during 2010. This finding has
been corrected.

09-3. Compliance Manual
Condition: The city is required to compliance with all applicable provision of the manual
referenced above.

Recommendation: We recommend the city review the manual and make revisions where
necessary in policies and procedures to comply will all applicable parts of the manual.

Current Status:  Recommendations were implemented during 2010. This finding has
been corrected.

JRbee, J2der ¢ fosoneates
February 8, 2011
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City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee
Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs and Responses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Summary of Auditors’ Results

+ The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of
Goodlettsville, Tennessee.

« No material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the financial statements.

+« No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Goodlettsville,
Tennessee were disclosed during the audit.

« No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were identified during the audit of the major federal
award programs.

« The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Goodlettsville,
Tennessee expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

« Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-
133 are reported in this Schedule.

s The programs tested as major programs included: Enviornmental Protection Agency — ARRA CFDA
66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Fund - Loan Forgiveness and Non-
ARRA CFDA 66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Fund - Loan.

« The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

+ The City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Findings- Financial Statements Audit — Internal Control

None identified

Findings- Financial Statements Audit — Compliance

None identified

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Internal Control for major
program — EPA ARRA CFDA 66.458 and EPA Non-ARRA CFDA 66.458

None identified

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Compliance and Other
Matters for major program - EPA ARRA CFDA 66.458 and EPA Non-ARRA CFDA 66.458

None identified

February 8, 2011
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February 11, 2011
Environmental Protection Agency

The City of Goodlettsville, Tennessee respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year
ended June 30, 2010.

Audit Firm: Parker, Parker & Associates, PL.C
1000 Northchase Drive, Suite 260
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Findings: Financial Statement Audit — Internal Control
None identified.
Findings: Financial Statement Audit — Compliance

None identified.

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Internal Control for major
program — EPA ARRA CFDA 66.458 and EPA Non-ARRA CFDA 66.458

None identified.

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit — Compliance and Other
Matters for major program - EPA ARRA CFDA 66.458 and EPA Non-ARRA CFDA 66.458

None identified.

If the Environmental Protection Agency has questions regarding this plan, please contact Mrs. Julie High
at 615-851-2200.

Sincerely Yours,

Mrs. Julie High

City Finance Director
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